DJP.104.007.6853

From: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)
Sent: Sun, 19 Apr 2020 13:46:21 +1000 PE——
To: Gonul Serbest (DJPR);BAS Planning (DEDJTR);Paul Stagg (DJPR)

(0JPR)SASS (D.PR);Felicia Cousins (DJPR)(DJPR),Unnl Menon
(DJPR)

( D.J P R ) : Personal Information

Personal Information

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR )i (DJPR):§

(DJPR)

Subject: For noting - DHHS new Command Structure for Hotels

Attachments: COVID-19 Command Structure for Hotels-Accommodation copy V5.pptx
FYI

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information

Personal Information . -
@agriculture.vic.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
Please note | work from home on FRIDAY
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From: SCC-Vic (Strategic Plan) Strategic Plan
Sent: Sat, 28 Mar 2020 20:15:14 +1100
To: Personal Information Personal Infor

: _ _ Simon Phemister
(DEDJTR) il (DP C);Simon Phemister (DEDJTR )| D P C i —
(DPC);Rob Holland (DEDJTR);Michael Mefflin (DHHS) jiutiid

i z Personal Information
Personal Information ;Clalre Febey (DEDJTR)

Personal Informatig Personal Information
VICPO i /- <o Helps (DHHS

Personal Information

Personal Information
Andrew

Vic (Strategic Communications);Chris B Eagle (DELWP);Braedan Hogan (DHHS)

Personal Information

Personal Information

Cc: (DJCS)

Subject: Approved Operations Plan - Operation Soteria - Version 1.0 released 28
March 2020 2000 hours

Attachments: Operations Plan - Operation Soteria - 28 March 2020 v1.:0 - final.docx

Good evening everyone,

Following today’s Operation Soteria planning meetings, | provide the approved operations plan.
Thank you to everyone for your efforts today and contributions'tothe development of this plan.

The CHO Detention Notice will be appended as Appendix1 when finally approved and distributed to
you.

Kindest regards

Personal Information

Strategic Planning Officer
SCC Strategic Planning Cell

State Control Centre | Level 4, 8 Nicholson Street, East Melbourne VIC 3002
Personal Information
| Web: https://cop.em.vic.gov.au

The information in this message and in any attachments may be confidential. If you are not
the intended recipient of this message, you must not read, forward, print, copy, disclose, or
use in'any way the information this message or any attachment contains. If you are not the

mtended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete or destroy all copies of
this message and any attachments.
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Distribution
State Control Team As per planning contacts list:
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VicPol
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Operation Soteria

1. SITUATION

Prime Minister Scott Morrison has announced that all passengers who arrive in Australia after
midnight on Saturday 28 March 2020 will go into mandatory quarantine in hotels for a fortnight.

e Passengers will be quarantined in the city in which they land, irrespective of where they live
e Two thirds of Australia’s coronavirus cases are from people travelling from overseas
e Defence personnel will help State and Territory Police enforce self-isolation rules

1.1 Background

e Australian National Cabinet has directed that all passengers returning to Australia from
international destinations are to undergo 14 days enforced quarantine.

e Expected volume of international passenger arrivals is 1500:per day.

e Direction from the Chief Health Officer is pending

e Heightened measures to curb the spread of COVID-19

e Assume small window of opportunity will lead to-a’spike in arrivals

e Primary port is assumed as Melbourne Airport:

e Alternate ports of entry may include Essendon Airport (Corporate Charter); Port of
Melbourne, Geelong Port, Portland Port, Western Port (Cargo); Station Pier (passenger)

e Control for every movement upon-arrival remains the authority of the Chief Health
Officer

1.2 Authorising Environment’- TBC
Public Health and Wellbeing:Act2008-(Vic)
Supporting documentation < Detention Notice issued pursuant to Public Health and Wellbeing
Act 2008 (Vic) Section200)(tope provided - Appendix 1)

1.3 Definitions
Passengers: Are-all individuals who arrive in Australia after midnight on Saturday 28
March 2020 and who are quarantined in hotels for 14 days

2. MISSION

Toimplement enforced quarantine measures for all passengers entering Victoria through
international air and sea points-of-entry to stop the spread of COVID-19.

3|Page
Version 1.0
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Operation Soteria

3. EXECUTION
e Purpose. Slow the spread of COVID-19 through Victoria
e Method. Implement enforced quarantine of passengers arriving internationally into Victoria.
e End state. All passengers that have arrived internationally to Victoria are quarantined for 14
days in order to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 within the Victorian community.

3.1 Phases to achieve identified objectives

3.1.1 Preliminary Actions
e During this period, all preparatory activities, to receive and comfortably accommodate
arriving passengers that support each of the phases to be completed

3.1.2 Phase 1 - Reception
e Begins when passengers arrive via international airport or maritime port, separated
from the general population to prevent transmission, transit through customs and
prepared for travel to quarantine locations.
e This phase ends once passengers have embarked on*bus-transport

3.1.3 Phase 2 - Transport
e Begins with buses leaving international airport-or maritime port.
e ltinvolves the transit of passengers to quarantine accommodation in vicinity of COVID
testing centres.
e This phase ends once passengers exit'transport vehicles

3.1.4 Phase 3 - Accommodation
e This phase begins when reception party receives passengers for quarantine.
e This will involve 14 days ofsisolation within commercial hotel/motel solutions in vicinity
of their entry points.
e This phase endsonce 14 days has lapsed and members are reviewed for approval to exit
guarantine.accommodation.

3.1.5 Phase 4~ Return to the Community
e “This'phase begins when the member is reviewed for exit by quarantine management
e _<This:will involve an assessment whether the passengers are safe to be allowed into the
Victorian community.
e This phase ends once the member has been briefed on their health responsibilities and
exits quarantine.

4|Page
Version 1.0
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Operation Soteria

e Management of services for all passengers including food and amenities

3.5.3 DHHS
e Passenger data reconciled with airside entry data
e Detailed identification of, capture and management of special/social needs (with DJPR)
e Establish FEMO teams at accommodation points to undertake initial health screening
e If required, social workers to provide support to passengers with complex needs
e Provision of psycho-social first aid
e Access to 24/7 nursing support for emerging health needs
e Provision of regular welfare calls to all quarantined passengers

3.5.4 VicPol
e Provision of support to private security as required

3.6 Phase 4 - Return to the Community

3.6.1 Communications
e DHHS will manage communications according to the:=Communications Plan
e DPC provide authorisation to overall Communications Plan

3.6.2 DHHS
e Conduct of health reviews to allow release back into the community
e Qutgoing passenger responsibilities brief
e Arrangements for any ongoing Psycho-social support

3.6.3 DoT
e Provision of transport to passengers to original destination/transit node

3.7 Strategies anddacticsiproposed to achieve tasks and objectives

3.7.1 Coordinating’Instructions

3.7.1.10 _Timings
Preliminary Phase
e Arrival data and maritime ports confirmed no later than 28 1000 Mar 20
e _Transport confirmed no later than 28 1300 Mar 20
e Quarantine Accommodation confirmed no later than 28 1600 Mar 20

e International terminal at Tullamarine prepared for quarantine by 28 2200 Mar 20

Phase 1

e Reception party at international airport and maritime port no later than one hour prior to
scheduled flights/vessel arrivals

Phase 2

e Transport in position no later than 1 hour prior to scheduled flights/vessel arrivals

Phase 3

e Service provision is in place for passenger quarantine for a minimum of 14 days

7|Page
Version 1.0
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Operation Soteria

Phase 4
e Release party in place to meet passenger needs for an effective return to community

3.7.1.2  Locations

Airports

e Tullamarine

Maritime Ports

e TBC

Quarantine Accommodation
e TBC

3.8 Daily arrivals schedule - see Appendix 2

3.9 Synchronisation matrix - See Appendix 4

4. COORDINATION

State Control Centre is the central coordination-point for all phases

4.1 Communications Plan (Lead’DHHS - Marita Tabain)
4.1.1 Authorisation of communications plan by DPC
4.1.2 Communications planto incorporate:
¢ To returning citizens/residents
e To returning citizens/residents family
e Media release plan

4.2 Planning Peints of Contact - See Appendix 3

8|Page
Version 1.0
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Appendix 1

Detention Order pending

9|Page
Version 1.0
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Appendix 2
DAILY TIMINGS (AS AT 28 1609 MAR 20)
Arrivals for 29 March 2020

Passenger arrivals MEL (Tullamarine)

Flight Sched. Depart. Sched. Aircraft | Gate Pax Comment

Number Date Airport Arrival type

time

QR994 29/3/2020 | DOH 0700 77W 9 17 Doha

AC037 29/3/2020 | YVR 0835 789 7 119 Vancouver

Cz321 29/3/2020 | CAN 0940 333 16 38 Guangzhou

MU737 29/3/2020 | PVG 1000 789 18 18 Shanghai
Pudong

Nz123 29/3/2020 | AKL 1050 77W 11 100 Auckland
1X
UNACCOMP.
MINOR

QR904 29/3/2020, [“DOH 1830 351 9 200 Doha

Total Passengers 492

Flights in transit 28 March 2020 — Flight tracking on time as at 1955 hrs 28 March 2020

Flight Sched. Depart. | Sched. Aircraft | Gate Pax Comment
Number Date Airport Arrival type
time
CX163 28/3/2020 | HKG 2252 16 Hong
Kong
10| Page
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From: Pam Williams (DHHS)

Sent: Tue, 28 Apr 2020 10:37:37 +1000

To: DJPR);RachaeIe E May (DJPR);DJPR COVID Accom-Lead
(DJPR)

Subject: FW: Operation Soteria plan v2.0 - for approval to distribute
Attachments: Operation Soteria Plan v2.0.docx

Just in case you did not get this!

Pam Williams

COVID19 Accommodation Commander
Department of Health and Human Services
Personal Information ) dhhS.ViC. gov.au

WWW.G S.Vic.gov.au

Soteria (Ancient Greek : Zwrnpia) was the goddess or spirit (daimon) of safety.and salvation,
deliverance, and preservation from harm.

From: Jason Helps (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Sunday, 26 April 2020 10:44 AM

To: Pam Williams (DHHS) Rkl dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Melissa Skilbeck (DHHS)
Personal Information @dhhs.vic gov.au>; Personal Informat} (DHHS) @dhhS vie gov au>
Personal Information D HHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Cc: Andrea Spiteri (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Operation Soteria plan v2.0 - for approvalto distribute

Sorry Pam, here it is.

From: Pam Williams (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Sunday, 26 April 2020 10:43'AM

To: Jason Helps (DHHS) dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Melissa Skilbeck (DHHS)

i = i Personal Information 3 Personal Information
I < hhs.vic.sov.au>; R (DHHS) dhhs.V|c.gov.au>; _

(DHHS) B /e it ddhhs.vic.gov.au>
Cc: Andrea Spiteri (DHHS) S ) J hhs.vic.gov.au>
Subject: RE: OperationSoteria plan v2.0 - for approval to distribute

Please share the approved final plan

Pam Williams
COVID19 Accommodation Commander
Department of Health and Human Services

Personal Information @dhhs.vic.qgov.au

www.dhhs.vic.gov.au

Soteria (Ancient Greek : Zwrnpia) was the goddess or spirit (daimon) of safety and salvation,
deliverance, and preservation from harm.

Personal Informatio

From: Jason Helps (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Sunday, 26 April 2020 10:35 AM

To: Melissa Skilbeck (DHHS)dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Informaﬁon

P I Informati ’ o ] : i
@dhhs.V|c.gov.au>; Pam Williams (DHHS) {SaaialiEi SN d hhs.vic.gov.au>;

Personal Information i .
(DHHS) [t @dhhs.vic.gov.au>
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. " Personal Information .
Cc: Andrea Spiteri (DHHdhhs.V|c.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Operation Soteria plan v2.0 - for approval to distribute

All,

EMC has approved the Operation Soteria plan.

From: Andrew S Crisp (DJCS) justice.vic.gov.au>

Sent: Sunday, 26 April 2020 10:31 AM
To: Andrea Spiteri (DHHS > d h hs.vic.gov.au>; SCC-Vic (EMC Executive Officer)
<sccvic.emceo@scc.vic.gov.au>

Cc: Jason Helis |DHHS) IR @ dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Braedan Hogan (DHHS)
Personal Information

@dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Operation Soteria plan v2.0 - for approval to distribute

Hi Andrea,

Thanks very much for the Operation Soteria v2.0 plan that | have approved.“My compliments to
those responsible for developing such a comprehensive plan especially given the ongoing and
significant operational activity.

Regards,

Andrew

Andrew Crisp APM
Emergency Management Commissioner

Emergency Management Victoria
Level 23, 121 Exhibition Street, Melbourne-3000

I < - c.cov.

www.emv.vic.gov.au

WCTORIA

Working inceopjtinction with Communities,
Goverhmeht?Agencies and Business

Thiscofficé-is based on the land of the Traditional Owners, the people of the Kulin Nations.
\Weacknowledge their history, culture and Elders both past and present.

From: Andrea Spiteri (DHHS) {5 d hhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 24 April 2020 7:30 PM

To: Andrew S Crisp (DJCS) @justice.vic.gov.au>; SCC-Vic (EMC Executive Officer)

<sccvic.emceo@scc.vic.gov.au> _
Cc: Jason Helps (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Braedan J Hogan (DHHS)

R < v 501 20>

Subject: Operation Soteria plan v2.0 - for approval to distribute
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Hi Andrew

Please see attached Operation Soteria plan v2.0 as discussed today for your approval to distribute.
Please note that while annexures are referenced in the document, they are live operational
documents subject to constant update, therefore referenced in the plan but not attached in the
version for approval.

Please let me, or Jason over the weekend, know if you have any queries. We propose to continue to
develop content representing the other agencies responsibilities in the next version.

Kind regards
Andrea

Andrea Spiteri
Director Emergency Management

Deiartment of Health and Human Services
Personal Information

This email contains confidential information intended only for'the person named above and may be
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this
information is prohibited. The Department provides no’guarantee that this communication is free of
virus or that it has not been intercepted or interfered with. If you have received this email in error or
have any other concerns regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

The content of this e-mail and any attachments may be private and confidential, intended only for
use of the individual or entity'named. if you are not the intended recipient of this message you must
not read, forward, print, copy;-disclose, use or store in any way the information this e-mail or any
attachment contains.

If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete or destroy all
copies of this e-mail and any attachments.

Our organisation respects the privacy of individuals. For a copy of our privacy policy please go to our
website ordcontact us.
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Operation Soteria

Mandatory Quarantine for all Victorian
Arrivals

Approved for distribution

Emergency Management Signature Date
Commissioner

Andrew Crisp
Distribution
State Control Team As per planning contacts list:
Strategic Planning Committee DHHS
EMJPIC DJPR
State Relief & Recovery Team / CAOG DPC
VicPol
Department of Transport

Document Details

Version | Status Author Reviewer/s Authorised Date/Time
for Release
0.1 Draft for initial Kaylene-Jones / | - Andrew Crisp | 27 March
discussion Angus 2020
Hindmarsh
0.2 Draft forrelease | Deb Abbott / Operation Soteria Andrew Crisp | 28 March
as version Kaylene Jones Coordination 2020 -
meeting 1815
hours
1.0 Final Version Deb Abbott / - Andrew Crisp 28 March
released Kaylene Jones 2020 -
2000
hours
2.0 New version DHHS Deputy Public Health Andrew Crisp
released Commander Commander
DHHS
Commanders
State Controller -
Health
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Abbreviations/Acronyms

ABF  Australian Border Force

AFP  Australian Federal Police

AV Ambulance Victoria

DFAT Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade

DHHS Department of Health and Human Services

DJPR Department of Jobs, Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions
DoT  Department of Transport Department of Transport

EOC Operations Soteria Emergency Operations Centre

EMV  Emergency Management Victoria Emergency Management Victoria

VicPol Victoria Police Victoria Police

Page 2 of 2 Version 2.0
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1 Introduction

1.1 Purpose

The purpose of this plan is to document the arrangements in place under Operation Soteria, to achieve
safe, authorised mandatory detention of returning travellers required to quarantine for 14 days on their
arrival into Victoria.

1.2 Scope

This document addresses the legislative and operational requirements for maintaining returned-travellers
in mandatory detention.

1.3 Audience

This document is intended for use by DHHS staff, and staff from all other departments and organisations
involved in Operation Soteria.

1.4 Background

Australian National Cabinet directed that all passengers returning-from international destinations who
arrive in Australia after midnight on Saturday 28 March 2020 areto undergo 14 days enforced quarantine
in hotels to curb the spread of COVID-19. Passengers are to be quarantined in the city in which they
land, irrespective of where they live.

A mandatory quarantine (detention) approach was introduced by the Victorian Government, consistent
with the Commonwealth Government (Department of Health Information for International Travellers)
policy that a detention order would be used for.all.people arriving from overseas into Victoria from
midnight on Saturday 28 March 2020.-The-policy is given effect through a direction and detention notice
under the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 (PHWA). See https://www.dhhs.vic.gov.au/state-

The objectives for people returning from overseas to Victoria are:

e To identify any instance ofiliness in returned travellers in order to detect any instance of infection
e To ensure effective isolation of cases should illness occur in a returned traveller

e To provide for.the health and welfare needs of returned travellers who are well or shown to be
COVID-19'negative but are required to remain in quarantine for the required 14 days

* To implement the direction of the Deputy Chief Health Officer through meeting:

— Avrequirement to detain anyone arriving from overseas for a period of 14 days at a hotel in specific
room-for a specified period unless an individual determination is made that no detention is required

= “Arequirement to record provision of a detention notice showing that the order was served and to
manage access to information on who is in detention using a secure database

= Arequirement to undertake checks every 24 hours by a department Compliance Lead during the
period of detention

— A requirement to fairly and reasonably assess any request for permission to leave the hotel room /
detention. This may be undertaken as part of a wholistic approach involving AOs, DHHS welfare
staff, medical practitioners, nurses and other specialist areas if needed.

1.5 Mission

To implement the safe and secure mandatory quarantine measures for all passengers entering Victoria
through international air and sea points-of-entry to stop the spread of COVID-19.

Page 4
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1.6 Inter-agency cooperation

Agencies engaged to deliver Operation Soteria include:

e Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
e Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions (DJPR)
» Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT)

e Department of Transport (DoT)

e Ambulance Victoria (AV)

» Australian Border Force (ABF)

e Australian Federal Police (AFP)

* Victoria Police (VicPol)

1.7 Process Flow
The process flow for Operation is structured in five phases, including a preliminary phase.
These phases include the following:

¢ Preliminary Phase (Plan & Prepare) — identify incoming passengers-and required hotel selection,
and prepare for passenger arrival

* Phase 1 (On the Flight) — manage / process exemption requests and confirm passenger manifest

e Phase 2 (Landed) — Passengers land and are issued‘Detention Notices and are triaged. Passengers
(Detainees) are transferred to Quarantine Hotels (or hospital if required)

« Phase 3 (Arrival at Hotel) — Passengers receive health checks, check in, provide completed
questionnaires and specialist needs managed

* Phase 4 (Quarantined) — Passengers are quarantined in their hotel rooms and are provided with
case management where health, welfare,.FV,-MH, etc issues arise. Quarantine compliance is also
managed

e Phase 5 (Exit) — Managed release-from-quarantine, exit transfer and specialist case management.
This also includes specialist'hotel cleaning and refurbishment

See Appendix 1 for an expanded description of the phases.

Page 5
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2 Governance

2.1 Governance

Operation Soteria is led by the Deputy State Controller (Operation Soteria) working to the State
Controller — Health, to give effect to the decisions and directions of the Public Health Commander and
Enforcement and Compliance Commander. Support agencies, including Department of Transport,
Victoria Police, Department of Premier and Cabinet support the Department of Health and Human
Services as the control agency for COVID-19 pandemic class 2 public health emergency, as outlined-in
section 2.3.

Operational leads will meet daily (or more frequently as required) for the duration of the operation to
ensure combined oversight of the operation. Meetings will be coordinated by SCC support'and chaired
by the Deputy State Controller — Health. Membership includes:

o State Controller - Health

¢ Deputy State Controller — Health

¢ Public Health Commander

¢ DHHS Enforcement and Compliance Commander

e« DHHS COVID-19 Accommodation Commander

e DHHS Agency Commander

 DJPR Agency Commander

¢ SCC Strategic Communications

¢ Department of Premier and Cabinet representative

¢ Department of Transport representative

¢ Senior Police Liaison Officer — Victoria -Police

2.2 Legislative powers

The Public Health and Wellbeing Act-2008 (Vic) (the Act) contains the legislative powers that Operation
Soteria gives effect to under the state of emergency has been declared under section 198 of the Act,
because of the serious risk tojpublic health posed by COVID-19.

Operation Soteria’ seeksto mitigate the serious risk to public health as a result of people travelling to
Victoria from overseas. People who have been overseas are at the highest risk of infection and are one
of the biggest contributors to the spread of COVID-19 throughout Victoria.

In accordance with section 200(1)(a) of the Act, all people travelling to Victoria from overseas will be
detained  at.a hotel specified in the relevant clause in their detention notice, for a period of 14 days,
because that is reasonably necessary for the purpose of eliminating or reducing a serious risk to public
health.

Having regard to the medical advice, 14 days is the period reasonably required to ensure that returned
travellers have not contracted COVID-19 as a result of their overseas travel.

Returned travellers must comply with the directions below because they are reasonably necessary to
protect public health, in accordance with section 200(1)(d) of the Act.

Under sections 200(7) and (9) of the Act, the Chief Health Officer is notified of the detention of returned
travellers, and must advise the Minister for Health.

Page 6
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A diagram indicating the governance of strategy / policy and operation of the mandatory quarantine
program is shown in Figure 2 below.

Appendix 2 provides an overview of the Enforcement and Compliance Command structure and
Appendix 3 the COVID-19 Accommodations Command Emergency Operations Centre structures.

Chief Health Officer

Emergency
Management
Commissioner,

State Controller

Health
Deputy Chief Health Deputy State .
. Controller Operation
Officer !
Soteria
I
I I
. Enforcement and CovID 19 Department of Jobs,
Public Health . . . .
Commander Compliance Accommodation Precincts & Regions
Commander Commander (DHHS) Commander

SCC Public Health
Liaison

Figure 1: Operation Soteria governance structure

2.3 Roles and Responsibilities

The Emergency-Management Commissioner is responsible for approving this plan for distribution.

The Public Health Commander (through the Deputy Public Health Commander / delegate) is responsible
for-approving this plan, in consultation with the Enforcement and Compliance Commander, Commander
COVID-19 Accommodation, the State Health Coordinator and the State Controller — Health.

The State Controller - Health (through the Deputy State Controller Operations Soteria), operating through
the Commander COVID-19 Accommodation has operational accountability for the quarantine
accommodation of returned travellers.

The DHHS Commander COVID-19 Accommodation is responsible for:

provision of welfare to individuals in mandatory quarantine (through the Deputy Commander Welfare);

ensuring the safety and wellbeing of individuals in mandatory quarantine and DHHS staff;

ensuring a safe detention environment at all times.

provision of healthcare to individuals in mandatory quarantine.
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2.4 Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)

DHHS, as the control agency for the COVID-19 pandemic Class 2 public health emergency, has
responsibility for the oversight and coordination of Operation Soteria.

2.4.1 Airside operations - biosecurity

Oversee as instructed by the Human Biosecurity Officer - Ports of Operation lead, Public Health
Incident Management Team

2.4.2 Airport Operations - reception

Detention notice issued by Authorised Officers (see Appendix 1) — DHHS Compliance (AOs)

Provision of and conduct of health screening and other well-being services (including psycho-social
support) — DHHS Ports of Entry — Reception (EOC)

Arrangement of patient transport services — DHHS Ports of Entry - Reception (EOC)
Provision of personal protective equipment for passengers — DHHS Port of Entry-- Reception (EOC)

Registration and initial needs identification of passengers for State-side use/application — DHHS Ports
of Entry - Reception (EOC)

Provision of information pack and food/water to passengers - joint contributions: DHHS Ports of
Entry - Reception (EOC)/Department Jobs, Precincts and Regions (DJPR)/VicPol

2.4.3 Public Health Directions

Assessment of inquiries and requests relating to directions— DHHS Directions
Enforcement of mandatory detention directions — DHHS Compliance (AOs)

Policy and processes relating to public health:including use of Personal Protective
Equipment and quarantine requirements for positive @and non-positive passengers
from the repatriation flight and provide health-advice to key stakeholders involved in
their care - DHHS Public Health Command

2.4.4 Health Coordination

Maintenance of overall situational-awareness of impacts to health services and support for the
appropriate implementation of the-model of care for those in isolation - DHHS Health Coordination

2.4.5 Health and Wellbeing of passengers at accommodation

Prepare for incoming'passenger accommodation registration — DHHS Detention Hotels (EOC) with
DJPR

Reception parties‘established to coordinate movement of passengers from transport into
accommodation’- DHHS Ports of Entry — Reception (EOC) with DJPR

Detailed'identification of, capture and management of welfare needs — DHHS Detention Hotels (EOC)
with' DJPR

Reception parties established and coordinated at identified accommodation — DHHS Detention Hotels
(EOC) with DJPR

Detailed identification of, capture and management of welfare needs at hotels — DHHS Detention
Hotels (EOC) with DJPR

Detailed identification of, capture and management of special/social needs - DHHS Detention Hotels
(EOC) with DJPR

Establish access to 24/7 medical and nursing support at accommodation points to support passengers
with medical and pharmaceutical needs - DHHS Health Coordination (EOC)

Provision of regular welfare calls to all quarantined passengers and support to meet identified needs,
such as psychosocial, mental health, family violence - DHHS Welfare (EOC)

Arrangements for any health and welfare needs including ongoing psychosocial support — DHHS
Detention Hotels (EOC)
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Permissions for temporary leave from place of detention — DHHS Compliance (AOs)

Conduct of voluntary health reviews to allow release back into the community — DHHS Detention
Hotels

Advise DoT and VicPol on numbers of passengers scheduled to exit quarantine — DHHS Detention
Hotels

Issuing of release documents and legal release of detainees from detention DHHS Compliance (AOs).

2.4.6 Communications including public communications

DHHS will manage communications according to the Operation Soteria Communication Plan.

2.5 Australian Federal Police (AFP)/Australian Border

Force (ABF)

Australian Border Force (AFB) coordinates the return of passengers during their flight.

The Australian Federal Police (AFP) supports AFB and other agencies in the'management of any
compliance or criminal issues.

2.5.1 Airside operations

Melbourne airport security and customs liaison

Provide passengers with required information about Direction/requirements

Collection of entry data (manifest)

Marshall passengers in an area that is secure and be able to facilitate health screening
Establish arrivals area for transport

Marshall Passengers for boarding

Assist boarding of passengers onto bustransportairside

Escort bus transports to accommodation

2.6 AFP

Escort bus transports to<assigned-accommodation
Transfer manifest to<VicPol‘on-arrival at accommodation

2.7 Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade

The Department of Home Affairs (DFAT) assesses and approves all applications for returning
Australians.

2:8 Department of Transport (DoT)

The transport provider Skybus has been engaged to transport passengers (who do not have any
immediate health needs requiring hospitalisation) to quarantine accommodation.

Provision of transport to passengers to airport or approved transit location.

Skybus and other DoT solutions tasked in accordance with projected arrivals and exits from
quarantine accommodation

Ensure transport of passengers (who do not have any immediate health needs requiring
hospitalisation) between point of entry, to quarantine accommodation and returning to approved
transit location following exit from quarantine accommodation
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3 Detention Authorisation

Section approver: Enforcement and Compliance Commander.

Last review date: 24 April 2020

3.1 Purpose
The purpose of this Detention Authorisation section is to:

e assist and guide departmental Authorised Officers (AOs) to undertake compliance and enforcement
functions and procedures for the direction and detention notice issued under the Public Health'and
Wellbeing Act 2008 (PHWA).

e provide clarity about the role and function of AOs.

3.2 Processes may be subject to change

¢ ltis acknowledged that the COVID-19 response is a rapidly evolving situation and matters are subject
to fluidity and change. This is particularly the case for the direction.and detention notice and the use
of hotels to facilitate this direction.

e To this end, this document will not cover every situation and-will be subject to change. For example,
the process for collecting data and signed direction and detention notices may change.

¢ This document aims to describe key responsibilities and provide a decision-making framework for
AOs. AOs are encouraged to speak to compliance leads for further advice and guidance.

3.3 Enforcement and Compliance Command for
Mandatory Quarantine

Deliverables of the enforcement-and compliance function
Enforcement and Compliance Command is responsible for:

e overall public health control of the detention of people in mandatory quarantine
» oversight and control of @uthorised officers administering detention
e administration of-decisions to detain and decision to grant leave from detention.

Authorised officer* and Chief Health Officer obligations

Sections 200(1)(a)-and 200(2) — (8) of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 (PHWA) set out several
emergency ‘powers including detaining any person or group of persons in the emergency area for the
periodreasonably necessary to eliminate or reduce a serious risk to health.

Departmental staff that are authorised to exercise powers under the PHWA may or may not also be
authorised to exercise the public health risk powers and emergency powers given under s.199 of the
PHWA by the Chief Health Officer (CHO). This authorisation under s.199 has an applicable end date;
relevant authorised officers (AOs) must be aware of this date. The CHO has not authorised council
Environmental Health Officers to exercise emergency powers.

3.4 Direction and detention notices

An initial notice was issued on 27 March 2020, which ordered the detention of all persons who arrive into
Victoria from overseas on or after midnight on 28 March 2020, requiring they be detained in a hotel for a
period of 14 days. A second notice (No 2) was issued on 13 April 2020 that requires the detention of all
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person who arrived into Victoria from overseas on or after midnight on 13 April 2020, requiring they be
detained in a hotel for a period of 14 days.

The directions are displayed on the department’s website at https://www.dhhs.vic.gov.au/state-
emergency and were made by the Deputy Chief Health Officer or Chief Health Officer:

More information can be obtained from:

https://www.dhhs.vic.gov.au/information-overseas-travellers-coronavirus-disease-covid-19

3.5 Exemptions and exceptional circumstances

Detainees may seek to be exempt from detention or have alternative arrangements for detention: ' The
ECC will consider these where exceptional circumstances exist and where the health and wellbeing of
the individual is unable to be met within the hotel environment. These are approved underthe authorised
approvals outlined in the policy in Annex 1.

3.6 Obligations under the Charter of Human.Rights and
Responsibilities Act 2006

Department AOs are public officials under the Charter of Human Rights. This means that, in providing
services and performing functions in relation to persons subject;to the Direction and Detention Notice,
department AOs must, at all times: act compatibly with human rights; and give 'proper consideration' to
the human rights of any person(s) affected by a department AO’s decisions. This is outlined in the
Charter of Human Rights_obligations document.

3.7 Processes and Procedtires

To assist the delivery of operations a set of:Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) has been developed
which outlines the powers, authority and-responsibilities of the Authorised officer to provide safe, efficient
and effective activities at Ports of Entry and Quarantine Hotels. This set of SOPs is designed to be a
‘one stop shop’ for Authorised Officers for.the provision of duties and activities and services.

The document containing the SOPs will also contain hyperlinks to more detailed procedures and
processes. The documentis contained at:

¢ Annex 1: Operation Soteria'— Authorised Officer Standard Operating Procedures

3.7.1 Enforcement and compliance information
Further information’is available at the links below

o At aglanceiRoles and responsibilities
o SAuthorised officers: Operational contacts
o Authorised officers: Powers and obligations

«~ Authorised officers: Charter of Human Rights obligations

«<~Authorised officers: Responsibilities at the Airport

e Authorised officers: Responsibilities at the Hotel

o Authorised officers: Responsibilities for departure from mandatory detention

e End of Detention Notice

e End of Detention Notice (confirmed case or respiratory illness symptoms)
¢ Compliance and Infringements
¢ Authorised officers: Occupational Health and Safety

e Unaccompanied minors
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Direction and Detention Notice — Solo Children
Ensuring physical and mental welfare of international arrivals in individual detention (unaccompanied

Management of an unwell person at the airport
Transfer of an uncooperative person

Request for exemption or temporary leave from quarantine %\, A?\ '

Permission for temporary leave from detention &
. . . 3
Requests for to leave room/facility for exercise or smoking Q/?* ??
Hospital transfer plan ©)
Hospital and Pharmacy contacts for each hotel Q
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4 Operations

Section approver: COVID-19 Accommodation Commander.

Last review date: 24 April 2020

4.1 Purpose

This set of standard operating procedures outlines the activities and actions required to provide safe,
efficient and effective hotel operations for those persons arriving in Australia via Victoria requiring
Mandatory Quarantine. This set of procedures is also designed as a one stop shop for the Team
Leaders at ports of entry (both air and sea) and Hotel operations as well as the broader team-members.
This will enable the efficient and effective provision of day to day services and activities required to
operationally achieve Operation Soteria.

4.2 Method

This plan will outline the operational (including basic health and welfare) arrangements or people in
mandatory quarantine as part of Operation Soteria. This has been conducted through:

e Preliminary planning to identify and develop the organisational structures, physical resources and
systems required to enact the operation efficiently and effectively.

e Reception of passengers entering Australia via Victorian international air or marine ports.
Passengers transit customs, are issued a Quarantine’Order, are medically assessed and are
transferred via bus from their port of entry to a Quarantine Hotel.

e Accommodation begins when the passengers disembark from the bus at their allotted Quarantine
Hotel to begin their 14-day isolation period.. Passenger data is reconciled with air/sea-port arrival
data, and they are screened for special/social/welfare/medical/pharmaceutical/food needs.
Passengers are allocated accommodation and checked in to the hotel. Passengers are provided with
regular welfare calls and specialineeds identified. Mandatory detention is enforced by DHHS via
authorised officers.

¢ Return to the Community begins:when the guest is reviewed for exit (14 days is elapsed), and
involves assessment of whether passengers are safe to enter the Victorian community. Passengers
released are briefed, exit quarantine and are transported to an approved transit location, which can
include transferring passengers back to the airport for onward air movement.

To oversee these-operations, an Emergency Control Centre (EOC) has been established. The role of

the is to ensure appropriate and timely coordination and resourcing of the international Ports of Entry into

Victoria, and the’Quarantine Hotels.

An organisational structure of the EOC and hotels on-site structure is attached at Appendix 3. The EOC
is located at 145 Smith Street Fitzroy.

The EOC will also coordinate the de-escalation of Operation Soteria.

4.3 Processes and Procedures

To assist the delivery of operations a set of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) has been developed
which outlines the activities, actions and forms required to provide safe, efficient and effective Port of
Entry and Quarantine Hotel operations. This set of SOPs is designed to be a ‘one stop shop’ for Team
Leaders and members, and EOC staff for the provision of day to day activities and services.

The document containing the SOPs will also contain hyperlinks to more detailed procedures and
processes. The document is contained at:

e Annex 2: Operation Soteria — Operations Standard Operating Procedures
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5 Health and Welfare

Section approver: Public Health Commander.

Last review date: 24 April 2020

5.1 Purpose
The health and welfare of persons in detention is of the highest priorities under Operation Soteria.

The Health and Welfare arrangements is based on a set of Public Health Standards for care of returned
travellers in mandatory quarantine and Guidelines for managing COVID-19 in mandatory quarantine.

Clinical governance framework

The clinical governance framework for Operation Soteria will ensure that returned passengers in
mandatory quarantine receive safe, effective and high-quality care that is consistent with best practice.

This framework integrates existing public health and operational oversight of the nursing, welfare,
medical and mental health care provided to people in mandatory quarantine.

The framework ensures that risk from quarantine for individuals, families and the entirety of the
passenger group in mandatory quarantine is proactively identified and managed. Information from
welfare, nursing, mental health and medical providers will be provided in a secure digital tool which
protects passengers’ confidentiality and privacy.

This information will be available in real-time to Public Health Command and to Operational Command.
Additionally a daily clinical governance report will identify compliance with Health & Welfare Standards.
The daily clinical governance report will also identify and address individual health and welfare issues to
ensure that passengers are receiving the right care:in the right place at the right time, and that health and
welfare staff are able to work safely and effectively to deliver care.

5.2 Standards

The Public Health Standards;for-care of returned travellers in mandatory quarantine have been
developed to ensure that ADEQUATE, APPROPRIATE and TIMELY measures are established and
delivered to care for the health‘and welfare of quarantined persons.

Each standard is composed of a series of criteria to underpin the care of quarantined persons and a suite
of indicators to;monitor ‘and evaluate the delivery of services. These standards, in Annex 3, include:

Standard.1. Rights of people in mandatory quarantine
Criterion 1.1 Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

Criterion .2 People with disabilities

Criterion 1.3 Use of translators

Criterion 1.4 Feedback and complaints process

Standard 2. Screening and follow up of health and welfare risk factors
Criterion 2.1 Health and welfare risk factors

Criterion 2.2 Schedule for screening

Criterion 2.3 Methods of screening

Criterion 2.4 Staff undertaking screening

Page 15



DJP.103.006.1922

Criterion 2.5 Risk assessment and follow up of persons ‘at risk’

Standard 3. Provision of health and welfare services
Criterion 3.1 Meeting the needs of people in mandatory quarantine
Criterion 3.2 Provision of on-site clinical services

Criterion 3.3 Provision of welfare services

Criterion 3.4 Provision of pharmacy and pathology services

Criterion 3.5 COVID-19 guidelines in mandatory quarantine

Standard 4. Health promotion and preventive care
Criterion 4.1 Smoking
Criterion 4.2 Fresh air
Criterion 4.3 Exercise

Criterion 4.4 Alcohol and drugs

Standard 5. Infection control

Criterion 5.1 Personal protective equipment (PPE)
Criterion 5.2 Cleaning and waste disposal
Criterion 5.3 Laundry

Criterion 5.4 Isolation protocols
Standard 6. Allergies and dietary requirements

Standard 7. Information and data management (including medical records)
Criterion 7.1 Confidentiality and privacy of personal information (including medical records)
Criterion 7.2 Information security

Criterion 7.3 Transfer of personal information (including medical records)

Criterion 7.4 Retention of personal information (including medical records)

Standard 8. Health and welfare reporting to the Public Health Commander

5:3 Guidelines

The ‘Guidelines for managing COVID-19 in mandatory quarantine’ have been developed to ensure that
public health management principles and processes are outlined for each stage of the mandatory
quarantine process. They have been written to follow the path of a returned traveller entering mandatory
quarantine.

They are intended for use by DHHS staff, healthcare workers and other departments involved in the care
of individuals detained in mandatory quarantine. They will be updated as internal processes change.

At the airport

Airport health screening

Management of an unwell person at the airport
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Refusal of testing

e At the airport
e Atthe hotel

At the hotel

Quarantine and isolation arrangements

e Accommodation options to promote effective quarantine

¢ Room sharing
e COVID floors and hotels

Confirmed cases entering detention

¢ Current infectious cases
e Recovered cases

Throughout detention

Clinical assessment and testing for COVID-19
e Timing of testing

e Pathology arrangements

e Communication of results

Case management
e Management of suspected cases
e Management of confirmed cases

Hospital transfer plan

e Transfer from hospital to hotel

Exiting detention
Release from isolation
o Criteria for release from isolation

e Process for release from isolation

* Release from detention of a confirmed case
Exit arrangements

e Suspected cases

¢~ Confirmed cases

e, “Quarantine domestic travel checklist
_“Care after release from mandatory quarantine

Operational guidance for mandatory quarantine
¢ Process for mandatory hotel quarantine

¢ Quarantined individual becomes a confirmed case
e Quarantined individual becomes a close contact

Infection control and hygiene

e Cleaning
e Laundry

DJP.103.006.1923
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¢ Personal protective equipment
Further information is available at the links below

* Infection control and hygiene

¢ Personal protective equipment

* Authorised officers: Occupational Health and Safety
* Hospital transfer plan

¢ Nutrition and food safety (including_allergies),

¢ Process for people with food allergies,

* Meal order information for people with food allergies,
* Food Safety Questionnaire

Further information is available at the links below:

* Hospital and Pharmacy contacts for each hotel
e Standards for healthcare and welfare provision

¢ Provision of welfare

e Separation of people in travelling parties to promote effective gdarantine: options for accommodation

+ Health and welfare assessments (arrival, during detention, préparation for discharge)
* Confirmed cases of COVID-19 in people in mandatory guarantine

* Escalation and Reporting of health and welfare concerns

¢ Infection control and hygiene

¢ Personal protective equipment

* Nutrition and food safety (including allergies),
¢ Process for people with food allergies,
o Meal order information for people with food allergies,

¢ Food Safety Questionnaire
 Release Process ‘Running Sheet!

o COVID-19 Victorian Hoteldsolation: Reimbursement Form for meal purchases

* Register of permissions.granted under 4(1) of the Direction and Detention Notice
¢ Operations_contactist

* Qutling/of agencgy involvement across the stages of enforced quarantine
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6 Information and Data Management

6.1 Information management systems

The number of secure databases used for the storage and handling of confidential data on people in
detention is minimised to prevent fragmentation of records management and to reduce the risk of critical
information not being available to DHHS, health or welfare staff providing for the health and welfare
needs of people in detention.

The following information management systems are authorised for use in this operation:

¢ The Public Health Event Surveillance System (PHESS);

e The healthcare and wellbeing database for mandatory quarantine (Dynamic CRM Database);
e Best Practice general practice software (see 3.3);

e Paper records (where necessary).

6.2 Data access, storage and security

The State Controller - Health, DHHS Commander COVID-19 Accommodation (or delegate) and Public
Health Commander (or delegate) are authorised to access any record within these systems to enable
oversight of the health and welfare of people in detention.

Information on people arriving internationally is shared with DHHS by DJPR to enable the operational
functions under sections 3-5. While multiple applications/systems may be used during the operation, all
information will be uploaded to PHESS, which willthenhold the complete medical and compliance
records for a person who was in detention in Victoria, as part of this operation.

6.2.1 Privacy

Respecting the privacy of individuals who are(detained under this operation is an important
consideration, as information collected\contains personal details and other sensitive information.

DHHS staff must comply with theDepartment of Health and Human Services privacy policy whenever
personal and/or health information.@about passengers/detainees, staff or others is collected, stored,
transmitted, shared, used ordisclosed.

The privacy policy-is-an.integrated policy, which supports the sensitive protection and management of
personal information<and seeks to meet the legislative requirements of the Privacy and Data Protection
Act 2014 and Health-Records Act 2001. Information relating to privacy is available at
intranet.dhhs.vic.gov.au/privacy.

6.2.2_Sending information by email

For:communication within the department, there are risks to privacy in sending information by email.
These include misdirection due to errors in typing the address and the ease of copying, forwarding,
amending or disclosing emailed information to others. Care should be taken with the list of addressees,
and the title of the email should not contain any identifying information.

6.2.3 Electronic security of passenger/detainee information

In addition to email, passenger/detainee information is stored, accessed and transmitted using systems
and devices such as computers, laptops, and smartphones. These systems and devices must be as
carefully protected as the passenger/detainee information itself.

An 'information security incident' occurs when the security of the information, system or device is
compromised. Some examples of these incidents are:
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o the details of a passenger is accidentally sent to the wrong email address

e a case worker's smartphone is lost or stolen and there was information about a passenger/detainee
stored on it

e avirus infects a computer that stores or accesses passenger/detainee information.

Information security incidents must be reported to the Emergency Operations Centre who, in turn, will
report it to the IT Service Centre.

6.3 Medical records

Medi7 is currently implementing a Best Practice medical record system for record-keeping.<This will be
uploaded to the DHHS Dynamic CRM Database.

6.3.1 Requirement for accessible medical records

Each quarantined individual must have a medical record accessible to all health care providers who
require access to it and who are providing care. This record captures the person’s significant medical
history, current medications, allergies and any other significant components'of the medical history, where
these have been revealed by the person in detention or discussed as part of medical care provided to the
person during detention. Each time health care is requested and provided it must be documented in this
record.

6.3.2 Confidentiality and access to medicalrecords

Any medical record created or held by DHHS for a person in detention is confidential and must only be
accessed by persons coordinating and providing.care for the person. The records will belong to DHHS
and can be required to be provided at any time by the medical service contractor to DHHS for review,
from the Best Practice software.

These records should be stored securely andshould not be accessed by anyone not providing care for
the person. Specifically, these medical records must only be accessed or viewed by an AHPRA-
registered health practitioner employed by DHHS to provide services to people in detention, an
authorised officer, or the Public Health Commander, State Controller - Health, DHHS Commander
COVID-19 Accommodation ortheirnamed delegate. Other persons involved in Operation Soteria should
not access a medical.recordfor’ an individual unless authorised on a named basis by the Public Health
Commander (or delegate) orthe State Controller - Health (or delegate).

Accurate and comprehensive medical record keeping is essential for the health and safety of all
individuals in“‘mandatory quarantine and will ensure continuity of care for healthcare providers in
subsequent shifts.If medical notes are recorded on paper, these should be stored securely and
uploaded-to the information management system as soon as is practicable and within 72 hours at most.
If a-doctor completes an assessment, they must provide a written record of this to the nursing staff, either
on paperor via email, if an electronic medical record system is not available.

Any-medical records documents that are potentially contaminated with COVID-19 (SARS-CoV-2) should
be safely placed in plastic pockets to reduce the risk of infection transmission.
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7 Issues escalation and incident reporting

The safety of staff, passengers/detainees and the Victorian community is a key priority of this operation.

All staff undertaking roles under Operation Soteria are responsible for timely and appropriate
management and escalation of issues arising under the operation. All risks and incidents must be
reported to the Department of Health and Human Services, via the on site Authorised Officer or relevant

Commander.

7.1 Hotel escalation process

The escalation process in Figure 2 below must be followed for all health and medical risks arising’in

quarantine hotels.

Immediate health and safety
issue identified by detainee or]
through welfare check

Escalation to nurse on site

If Ambulance required call

(0[0[0]

Nurse assess if person is at
risk

*GP

*CART Team

No risk identified

Risk‘identified

Care decision made. Refer to;

*Mental Health Nurse

(0[00]

No further action required

Nurse logs details in app or in
other record

If Ambulance required call

Notify Authorised Officer on
site

Authorised Officer to raise
with compliance team on call

officer

On call officer to raise with
relevant area.

*Public Health Commander
*Exemptions

If no Team Leader on site or
after hours 10pm to 8am

If ambulance required call 000

Contact the rostered oncall DHHS
Executive Officer (Deputy Commander

Detention Hotels)

If a major incident complete an
Incident Report

Contact the rostered oncall DHHS
Executive Officer (Deputy Commander|
Detention Hotels)

Take appropriate action. This may
include,

*Calling the GP assigned to the hotel
*Linking to Mental Health Nurse if on
site
*Treatment within scope of practice

If a major incident complete an
Incident Report

Report to Team Leader if on

site

(during 8am to 10pm)

If ambulance required call 000

Then contact Operations Team Leader
in EOC

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
Contact Operations Team Leader in
EOC
If a major incident complete an
Incident Report
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7.2 Incident reporting

The incident reporting process and template in Appendix 4 outlines the Department of Health and
Human Services management requirements for major incidents or alleged major incidents that involve or
impact significantly upon passengers/detainees during airport reception, hotel quarantine, and other
users or staff during provision of accommodation services during the COVID-19 emergency. Examples
include injury, death, sustaining/diagnosis of a life threatening or serious iliness, and assault/crime.
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Appendix 1 - Operation Soteria process phases A

Compulsory quarantine service architecture

Activity and responsibility details

Objectives of service:

1. Legally detain people 2, Protect their health & wellbeing and those around them
3. Provide as comfortable an experience as reasonable 4. Mitigate flow-on demand to health system
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Appendix 2 - Enforcement and Compliance Command structure

ECC Commander
Deputy Commander AO operations Deputy Commander Policy and
Oversight of AOs Exemptions
Oversight operational policy and procedures
Case management of exemptions
AO Team leaders AO Operations support Policy & Protocols team Exemptions team
Monitor VicPol email Prepare operational policy and Case manage requests for
Day-to-day management of Authorised Manage Review procgss protocols to support ECC exemptions from detention
Officers; Manage Release process operations through COVIDQuarantine
Operational liaison with Victoria Police

Authorised Officers
EMLO - VicPol
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Appendix 3. Emergency Operations Centre Structure
COVID-19

State Controller- Health

Executive -
Compliance &

il FPublic Health Liaison —
T ! Deputy State Controller — g Policy advisor
Directions .. Operation Soteria _ -4 DJFR Liaison
1 S = | - - -
Human Services Tl COVID-19 Accommodation ezio-=7"" [ safety and Security Advisor
HE“L:EW ) Commander s sanas
Authoriead OMcaers aTamre
r | 1 |
Deputy Commander Deputy Commander Deputy Deputy Commander
Ports of Entry - Detention Hotels Commander Hotel for Heroes &
Recepti Vulnerable

Health coordination
accomodation

EOC
Suppar
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Deputy Commander
Ports of Entry

Deputy Commander
Detention Hotels

| suthorlsad OMcers |

I
DHH 2 Team Lazdar

I
| Laskiour Hire staff |

| Murses |

DHHZ Team Leaders

T
DHH & walfare support
staff

|
| authorized CMcers |

=

Deputy Commander
Welfare

Exit tasm laadar
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and on day of axif

DHHE Team Leaders

Weltare support Callers

Covid Accommodation
Support Team (CART)
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Appendix 4 - DHHS COVID-19

Quarantine — incident reporting

1. Introduction

This document outlines the Department of Health and Human Services (the department) management requirements for
maijor incidents or alleged major incidents that involve or impact significantly upon passengers/detainees during airport
reception, hotel quarantine, and other users or staff during provision of accommodation services during the COVID-19
emergency. Examples include injury, death, sustaining/diagnosis of a life threatening or serious.ililness, and
assault/crime.

The primary audience for this document is departmental staff on site and senior officers who are involved in reviewing,
endorsing, processing, recording and analysing incident reports after Parts 1-6 of the‘incident report have been
completed at the service delivery level supported by the appropriate Deputy Commander.

This document was last reviewed on 21 April 2020.

2. Reviewing and endorsing incidentseports

This section outlines the steps required for reviewing and endorsing-incident reports, once provided to the DHHS
Commander COVID-19 Accommodation via dhhsopsoteriagoc@dhhs.vic.gov.au following verbal report via phone from
the relevant Deputy Commander. Figure 1 below provides an-overview of the process.

2.1. Overview

Incident reports (Parts 1-6) are completed by the most'senior departmental staff immediately involved in the
management of the incident onsite, with support ofthe relevant Deputy Commander. In the case of any incident, the
first priority is making sure passengers/detainees and staff are safe, and in hotels, appropriate care provided (see
escalation process for hotel detention), After, that, an incident report must be completed and sent to the Commander
COVID-19 Accommodation via dhhsopsoteriaeoc@dhhs.vic.gov.au following verbal report via phone. The report
includes immediate actions that'have been taken and planned follow-up actions.

The specified department officers.review the incident report, and complete parts 7-9. The Commander COVID-19
Accommodation is also responsible for sending the report to Safer Care Victoria, the Public Health Commander and
the Compliance Lead.

Figure 1: High'Level flowchart for reviewing and endorsing an incident report

Incident Incident Incident report Incident report endorsed Incident report
report report verified and by Deputy Secretary endorsed by
received reviewed by endorsed by _ | Regulation, Health _| Secretary
by EOC relevant "l Commander "| Protection and "1 DHHS

Deputy COVID-19 Emergency Management

Commander Accommodation

Incident report received by
| Safer Care Victoria for
review

L » | Incidentreport received by
Public Health Commander
and Compliance Lead
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The incident report form is available from the Operation Soteria Emergency Operations Centre (EOC),
dhhsopsoteriaeoc@dhhs.vic.gov.au or relevant Deputy Commander. All reports must be legible and presented in the
specified report format.

2.2. Deputy Commander receives an incident report

When an incident report is forwarded to the DHHS EOC, the report is registered in the EOC’s electronic file system,
TRIM, and allocated a reference number. It is then forwarded to the relevant Deputy Commander as soon as possible
(within 1 hour). The staff completing the report will contact the relevant Deputy Commander by mobile to advise of the
incident.

2.2.1. Reports about passengers/detainees who are also clients

If a passenger/detainee is a client of other service types, service providers or government departments, information
regarding a major incident may be disclosed to other agencies or departments to lessen or prevent a serious or
imminent threat to a client’s life, health, safety or welfare; and/or with the intent of preventing similar incidents from
occurring in the future. The Commander COVID-19 Accommodation is responsible for notifying within the department
and/or other organisations where the passenger/detainee is known to be a client, with,the’lead division will inform any
community service organisations involved in providing services if applicable.

2.3. Review of the incident report

The relevant Deputy Commander endorses the incident report by completing-Part 6 of the incident report (refer to
attachment 1).

They must review the incident report and:
o check that the immediate needs of the passenger/detainee(s).-have been addressed

o check that appropriate immediate actions have been’taken in response to the incident and that any planned further
actions are appropriate

o if a particular requirement has not been undertaken, the reasons why are documented
e ensure that the passenger/detainee and-location-details have been recorded and are accurate
¢ ensure all sections of the incident report are,completed

e record any additional or required‘follow-up action (if any).

2.4. Verify and endorse’'the incident category
The Commander COVID=19;Accommodation verifies and endorses the incident report.

The Commander COVID=19 ‘Accommodation is responsible for escalating an incident report to the Deputy Secretary
Regulation, Health Protection and Emergency Management to endorse, and sending the report to the Public Health
Commander,the.Compliance Lead and Safer Care Victoria via irtreviews@safercare.vic.gov.au for review.

The Deputy Secretary Regulation, Health Protection and Emergency Management is responsible to escalate the
incident report to the Secretary Department of Health and Human Services for endorsement.

2.5 File the completed incident report

After’Parts 7-9 have been completed and endorsed, the incident report is returned to the Emergency Operations
Centre for records management. This constitutes the final completed report.

The final completed report must be placed in a TRIM record must be updated in accordance with the department’s
record management policy.

Where allegations are made against a staff member, the incident report and any subsequent reports are to be retained
in the staff file.
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2.6. Incident report records management and privacy

Incident reports (paper versions and related electronic data) must be stored securely and only accessed by staff that
have a business purpose for doing so. Paper reports are discouraged, and if required, should be stored in locked filing
cabinets. Access to electronic data should be limited to appropriate staff only.

2.7. Local investigation and causal analysis

The Commander COVID-19 Accommodation will ensure that the incident is subject to an appropriate level of local
investigation and causal analysis and that, where relevant, an improvement strategy is prepared.

Incident investigations should:
¢ identify reasons for the incident occurring
o identify opportunities for improvement in management systems or service delivery practice

e make local recommendations and implement improvement strategies in order to prevent-or minimise recurrences.
These strategies should be actionable and measurable and include an assessment of their.effectiveness in
delivering improvement

o satisfy mandatory reporting or review requirements (for example, notifying the;Coroner or WorkSafe).

3. Privacy

Respecting the privacy of individuals who are involved in or witness'to an‘incident is an important consideration in
dealing with incident reports, which often contain personal details‘and other sensitive information.

Departmental staff must comply with the Department of Health and Human Services privacy policy whenever personal
and/or health information about passengers/detainees, staff or others is collected, stored, transmitted, shared, used or
disclosed.

The privacy policy is an integrated policy, which supports.the sensitive protection and management of personal
information and seeks to meet the legislative requirements of the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and Health
Records Act 2001. Information relating to privacyis-available at intranet.dhhs.vic.gov.au/privacy.

3.1. Sending information-by-email

For communication within the department,-there are risks to privacy in sending information by email. These include
misdirection due to errors in typing the ‘address and the ease of copying, forwarding, amending or disclosing emailed
information to others. Care=should be taken with the list of addressees, and the title of the email should not contain any
identifying information.

3.2. Electronic security of passenger/detainee information

In addition to‘email, passenger/detainee information is stored, accessed and transmitted using a emergency
management systems and devices (including computers, laptops, and smartphones). These systems and devices must
be as_carefully protected as the passenger/detainee information itself.

Anlinformation security incident' occurs when the security of the information, system or device is compromised. Some
examples’of these incidents are:

o’ the details of a passenger is accidentally sent to the wrong email address
e~ a case worker's smartphone is lost or stolen and there was information about a passenger/detainee stored on it
e avirus infects a computer that stores or accesses passenger/detainee information.

Information security incidents must be reported to the Emergency Operations Centre who, in turn, will report it to the IT
Service Centre.
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DHHS Quarantine — incident

reporting template

Reference number

Impact (Major only) e.g. injury, death, sustaining/diagnosing life

threatening condition, assault/crime

1. Service provider details

Reporting organisation

Address of service delivery

DHHS Service Area (e.g. Emergency Management)

Service type

2. Incident dates

Date of incident

Date accuracy (exact/approximate)

Time of incident

Time accuracy (exact/approximate)

Date incident disclosed

Time incident disclosed

3. Incident descrip,tioh

Location of incident

Detailed incident descrip’[ion
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4. Individual details — Passenger/detainee 1 [duplicate for each

person involved]

Passenger/detainee’s full name

Passenger/detainee incident impact

Sex

Indigenous status

Date of birth

Passenger/detainee address

Passenger/detainee unique identifier number (if applicable)

Incident type

Involvement in the incident (victim, witness, subject of
abuse allegation, participant)

Passenger/detainee’s immediate safety needs met
(Yes/No)

Medical attention provided (Yes/No)

Passenger/detainee debriefing or counselling (Yes/No

Referral to support services (Yes/No)

Change passenger/detainee care (support plan)
(Yes/No)

Notified next of kin, guardian or key support person” &
(Yes/No) '

5. Other/s involved in |nC|dent [duplicate for each other person involved]

Person’s full name

Date of birth

Person’s job title or relationship t0'passenger/detainee
(carer, paid staff, other)

Person’s involvement in the incident (victim, witness,
subject of abuse allegation, participant)

6. Service provider response details

Brief summary of incident

Reported to police (Yes/No)

Name of officer and date reported to police

Police investigation initiated (Yes/No)

Staff member stood down/removed (Yes/No)

Manager’s full name

Manager’s job title
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Date incident report reviewed

Manager telephone number

Manager email

Immediate actions taken by the organisation in response to the incident

Deputy Commander full name and signature

Deputy Commander job title

Date incident report approved

Comments

Vi

7. Incident report authorisation — EOC Command

Delegated authority full name and signature

Delegated authority job title

Commander QdVID—1 9 Accommodation

Date incident report approved

Delegated authority phone number

Delegated authority email address

Comments

8. Incident report authorisation — Deputy Secretary

Delegated authority full name and signature

Delegated authority job title

Date incident report endorsed

Delegated authority ph,or”lé number

Delegated authority-email address

Comments (optional)

9. Iacident report authorisation - Secretary

Delegated authority full name

Delegated authority job title

Date incident report endorsed

Page 32



DJP.103.007.9086

From: Rachaele E May (DJPR)

Sent: Mon, 20 Apr 2020 09:03:33 +1000

To: Pam Williams (DHHS)

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR);DHHSOpSoteriaEOC;Pam Williams
(DHHS);Kait K McCann (DJPR)

Subject: RE: Matters for discussion at 11am Monday

Hi Pam,

Unfortunately | am meeting with IGEM and our departmental secretary for the Bushfire Inquiry.at
llam.

Would immediately after the 1330 meeting today suit?

Your list if items looks good. | would add;
e Need for second red hotel

Use of red floors in existing hotels

Daily Briefing of hotel staff by DHHS team leaders
Data management

Safety Incidents

And could we please schedule a second meeting tomorrow:te discuss long term hotel planning — our
key hotel operations person is on a day off today andI'would like her to join the conversation. We
can get a head start today and finish it tomorrow.

Thanks
Rachaele

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat. Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information
Personal Information @aqriculture.vic.qov.au

djpr.vic.goviau
Please note | work.from home on FRIDAY

From: Pam Williams (DHHS)dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Sent:Sunday, 19 April raran

TozRachaele E May (DJPRagriculture.vic.gov.au>

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au>;
DHHSOpSoteriaeOC <DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Pam Williams (DHHS)

I o s vic gov.au>

Subject: Matters for discussion at 11am Monday

Hello Rachaele
For our discussion tomorrow:
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e Transition from SCC to AEOC — the AEOC is now established. Matters which previously went to the
Controller should now come to the EOC Commander (me) via the EOC Soteria inbox

e Hotel planning — potential to fill hotels to reduce the number of DHHS/DJPR staff required to
service the hotels

e Exit planning — we are still receiving exit information very late — how can we help to bring this
information forward at least 24 hours?

e Food in hotels — this is urgent. Some hotels are providing inadequate food — small portions, out of
date/rotten/undercooked food, no choices to suit people’s cultural or dietary preferences. Can
these hotels change their suppliers?

e Food delivery — at the guest’s expense; but this should be for extras/special needs, not as
replacement for inadequate service from the hotels. Can Security or hotel staff deliver these
parcels?

e Recreation policy/smoking in rooms — what are the options to manage the recreation policy in
hotels with limited space?

e Any further items from you?

Pam Williams
COVID19 Accommodation Commander
Department of Health and Human Services

Personal Information @dhhs.vic.gov.au

www.dhhs.vic.gov.au

This email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended.recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this
information is prohibited. The Department provides'no guarantee that this communication is free of
virus or that it has not been intercepted oninterfered with. If you have received this email in error or
have any other concerns regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au
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copying or use of this information is prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that
this communication is free of virus or that it has not been intercepted or interfered with. If
you have received this email in error or have any other concerns regarding its transmission,
please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au
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w. www.dhhs.vic.gov.au | &

Please note that the content of this fax / this email is for the addressee's use only. It is confidential and may be legally
privileged. It must not be copied or distributed to anyone outside the Department of Health and Human Services without the
permission of the author. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this information is prohibited. If
you have received this fax / this email in error, please contact the author whose details appear above.

This email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this
information is prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that this communication is free’of
virus or that it has not been intercepted or interfered with. If you have received this emailin error or
have any other concerns regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vicigov:au
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This email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be

subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this

information is prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that this communication is free of
virus or that it has not been intercepted or interfered with. If you have received this email in error or
have any other concerns regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au
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From: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)

Sent: Sat, 18 Apr 2020 08:19:26 +1000

To: SCC-Vic (State Controller Health);Jason Helps (DHHS)

Ce: (DJPR)

Subject: FOR RESPONSE - Guests exiting Quarantine - covid positive
Hi Jason,

DJPR requires clear direction about guests who are exiting quarantine, and who are confirmed<ovid
positive, or are still awaiting test results.

| note at yesterday’s 1330 Op Soteria meeting, that stated covid positive guests
cannot be held longer than their 14 day quarantine period, but they must immediately self isolate.
He also stated they cannot get on an aeroplane, and he had no advice about people who are
awaiting test results.

Can you please provide direction about guests who have completed their 14 mandatory quarantine
period and are now exiting a Hotel:

Guests who are confirmed COVID-19 Positive must immediatelyself isolate
e |f they are departing the hotel to a destination on Victoria
o what type of transport should they take — medical transport or standard commercial taxi, public
transport?
o What PPE must they wear on their journey home?
o Who advises the transport (taxi, public transport) operator of their covid positive status?
e |f they need to onward travel interstate via train, hire car or personal car:
o What PPE must they wear on their journey home?
o Who advises the transport (taxi, publictransport) operator of their covid positive status?
e |f they need to onward travel via-aeroplane, and Finn advised they cannot travel in a plane:
o Who arranges their accommodationwhile they recover?
o Do they get transported to Rydges?
o Who arranges the transport?
e Who advises the guests-of the'above restrictions? | assume this would be DHHS AOs or nurses, eith
advise to DJPR toassist in‘the check out process.

Guests who are awaiting test results
e Do they self-isolate, can they travel on a plane, who accommodates them in Victoria?
e Who advises the guest — DHHS AOs?

Atthe moment all guests are being released by the authority of DHHS AOs.

Regards
Rachaele

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information

aqriculture.vic.qov.au
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djpr.vic.gov.au
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From: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)

Sent: Wed, 22 Apr 2020 12:15:38 +1000

To: (DJPR) [ (D)PR)

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR);DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)
Subject: RE: For feedback asap please: Food Delivery Policy Options

can you please provide the words for indemnity to Pam and EOC — she has requested a copy
below

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information

@aqriculture.vic.qov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
Please note | work from home on FRIDAY

From: [ D/ PR) @ecodev.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 22 April 2020 12:14 PM

To: [ (D'PR) g ® e codev.vic.gov.au>

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-support@ecodev.vic.gov.au>; DJPR COVID
Accom-Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au>
Subject: RE: For feedback asap please: Food Delivery Policy Options

H | Personal Infoj

Please see below —we are good'to'go to print on the fact sheet.

Thank you all — excellent-work!

Personal Information

Deputy-Agency -Support Lead
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions
Level5, 4,Spring Street, Melbourne, Victoria Australia 3000

Personal Information s

djpr.vic.gov.au

LinkedIn | YouTube | Twitter
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From: Pam Williams (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 22 April 2020 12:09 PM

To: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au>;
DHHSOpSoteriaEOC <DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Cc: DJPR COVIDcc—S port (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-support@ecodev.vic.gov.au>;
(DJPR)i@ecodev.vic.gov.au>

Subject: RE: For feedback asap please: Food Delivery Policy Options

Agreed policy. Can we also look at the words being provided to the guests? Information about
liability is particularly important.

Pam Williams
COVID19 Accommodation Commander
Department of Health and Human Services

Personal Information @dhhs.vic.gov.au

www.dhhs.vic.gov.au

Soteria (Ancient Greek : Zwrtnpia) was the goddess or spirit (daimon) ‘of safety and salvation,
deliverance, and preservation from harm.

From: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead @ecodev.vic.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 21 April 2

To: Pam Williams (DHHS) @dhhs.vic.goviau>; DHHSOpSoteriaEOC
<DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au> S —

Cc: DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-support@ecodev.vic.gov.au>;-

(DEDJTR)ecodev.vic.gov.au>

Subject: For feedback asap please: Food Delivery Policy Options

Dear Pam,

Given the current array of exemptions allowing food delivery, as well as the need to provide high
levels of service and amenity:to all quarantined passengers, DIPR is keen to make food delivery
available to all quarantined passengers across all hotels.

To this end, | have attacheda one-page policy proposal for allowing food delivery services. The
proposal outlinesithe procedures and conditions we will place on the new service. Broadly, they are:

e Food delivery willbe available between 12-3pm and 6-9pm.

e Food delivery will follow the existing process available to individuals who have been provided with
an-DHHS-approved exemption.

e 'Food delivery will not include home-cooked meals, noting that DHHS is able to provide exemptions
where they deem necessary.

e Hotels will still prepare 3 meals per day per passenger.

At an operational level, we are happy to utilise DJPR’s existing operational resources to facilitate the
new process. However, we ask that DHHS provides any additional resources for DHHS-required
health and safety beyond what is already in place for parcel and food delivery.

As | have previously noted, we are keen to operationalise this process as soon as possible. If you
could please confirm your agreement by tomorrow morning that would be appreciated.
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With thanks,
Rachaele

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information
P I Informati : :
ML I @ agriculture..vic.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
Please note | work from home on FRIDAY
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Government of Victoria, Victoria, Australia.

This email, and any attachments, may contain privileged and confidential
information. If you are not the intended recipient, you may not distribute or
reproduce this e-mail or the attachments. If you have received this message in

error, please notify us by return email.
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This email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and
may be subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure,
copying or use of this information is prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that
this communication is free of virus or thatiit has not been intercepted or interfered with. If
you have received this email in‘error-orhave any other concerns regarding its transmission,
please notify Postmaster@dhlihs 4i¢. gov.au
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this e-mail. If you are an authorised recipient of this e-mail please note that any views or opinions presented in
this e-mail or any attachment to this e-mail are solely those of the individual sender, except where the sender
specifically states them to be the views or opinions of the Stellar Asia Pacific. You should only re-transmit,
distribute or commercialise the information contained in this e-mail and any attachments if you are authorised
to do so. Stellar Asia Pacific respects your privacy. Our privacy policy can be viewed on our website:
www.stellarxm.com. If you do not wish to receive any further emails from Stellar Asia Pacific, please email
decline@stellarxm.com, and type DECLINE in the Subject field.
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
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The information in this message and in any attachments may be confidential. If you are not the
intended recipient of this message, you must not read, forward, print, copy, disclose, or use in.any
way the information this message or any attachment contains. If you are not the intended recipient,
please notify the sender immediately and delete or destroy all copies of this message and:any
attachments.

This email contains confidential information intended only for the person’ named above and
may be subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient;-any disclosure,
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

Sent: Mon, 20 Apr 2020 15:33:04 +1000

To: Felicia Cousins (DJPR);DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR);DJPR COVID
Accom-Lead (DJPR)

Subject: RE: COVID19 positives

| have placed this request with DHHS a number of times.... I'll cc you in my next follow up....

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information
Personal Information " N
@agriculture.vic.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
Please note | work from home on FRIDAY

Personal Information
From: Felicia Cousins (DJPR) @ecodev.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 20 April 2020 3:03 PM

To: DJPR COVID Accom-Support (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-support@ecodev.vic.gov.au>; DJPR COVID
Accom-Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au>
Subject: COVID19 positives

Hi

Do we have a policy/process provided by’DHHS for COVID19 positive guests and how they are
managed?

Thanks
Flic

Felicia Cousins

Executive Directon | Transformation and Performance | Rural and Regional Victoria
Department of'Jobs, Precincts and Regions

33 Breed St Traralgon3844

Personal Information
Personal Information % ecodev.vic.qov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au

Linkedin | Youtube | Twitter

n We acknowledge the traditional Aboriginal owners of country throughout Victoria, their ongoing connection to this land and
we pay our respects to their culture and their Elders past, present and future.



OPERATION SOTERIA
PPE Advice for Hotel-Based Security Staff & AOs

in Contact with Quarantined Clients

Approved
Date: 5 May 2020

By: M Bamert (Dir EM)

Recommended PPE

Recommended PPE use according to type of activity

Setting

Activity

Security Staff

Client PPE required

Hotel Lobby

(accepting deliveries and
checking/greeting people)

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every
client contact

e Able to maintain physical
distance of at least 1.5
metres

e No PPE
e Hand hygiene

» Not applicable

Hotel Lobby

When new guests are
arriving for the
commencement of their
quarantine

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every
client contact

e Able to maintain physical
distance of at least 1.5
metres

* No PPE
e Hand hygiene

e 1.5 metre physical distance
is not feasible

Surgical mask

Hand hygiene

e Client to wear
surgical face mask
if tolerated

» Hand hygiene

e Advised not to
touch anything on
the way infup

Hotel quarantine floor

No direct client contacts e.g.

e No PPE

* No PPE / Not

et St

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every
Client contact

e Able to maintain physical
distance of at least 1.5
metres

e Hand hygiene

walking room hallways or ; applicable
Not entering the client/s station%d in room co?/ridors * Hand hygiene PP
room or having direct
contact with client/s.
Perform hand hygiene
before and afterevery
client contact
Any doorway visit: * No PPE e No PPE

Any doorway visit:

e 1.5 metre physical distance
is not feasible

e Surgical mask
e Hand hygiene

¢ Client to wear
surgical face mask
if tolerated

e Hand hygiene

Page 1 of 2
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Setting

Activity

Security Staff

Client PPE required

Accompanying clients
for fresh air/exercise
breaks from room to
outside

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every
client contact

e Able to maintain 1.5 metres
physical distance

* No PPE
e Hand hygiene

e Client to wear
surgical face mask
if tolerated

e 1.5 metre physical distance
is not feasible

e Surgical mask
¢ Hand hygiene

» Hand hygiene

e Advised not to
touch anything on
the way out/down

Hand Hygiene

Effective hand hygiene is the single most important strategy in preventing infection.

Gloves are NOT a substitute for hand hygiene and hands should be washed with soap and-water if they are visibly
soiled, otherwise hand sanitiser can be used continuously.

Gloves are NOT recommended for any security staff or AO staff member at any time:

Respiratory hygiene and cough etiquette must be applied as a standard infection control precaution at all times.
You must also perform hand hygiene each time you use a tissue or cough.or'sneeze into your elbow.

ALWAYS AVOID TOUCHING YOUR FACE.

Hand sanitiser is NEVER applied to gloved hands.

Mask usage

PROCEDURE FOR PUTTING ON MASK

1. Perform hand hygiene using the hand sanitizer
2. Put on the mask handling the side tapes only

a. If your mask has the ear loops,‘place them over both ears together

b. If your mask has to be tied, tie the bottom first and then the top tie to secure on your face
c. Ensure the mask is secured across the bridge of your nose (mold metal clip over bridge of nose)
and ensure it sits ‘snuggly.under the chin
3. Perform hand hygiene

4. After mask is in place nevertouch the front of your mask

PROCEDURE FOR TAKING-OFF MASK

1. Perform hand hygiene using the hand sanitizer

2. Do nottouch the'front of the mask

3. Undo-the=bottom tie of your mask and then the top tie, handling the mask only by the top ties, drop mask
straight-into the yellow bin

4.If youramask has the ear loops, remove the loops and place into bin

5. . Perform hand hygiene using the hand sanitizer

Note: Hand hygiene should be performed when you feel that you may have contaminated your hands from
touching the mask (if wearing one), or your face.

5 May 2020

Page 2 of 2

Approved: M Bamert (Dir EM)
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From: Merrin Bamert (DHHS)

Sent: Fri, 29 May 2020 22:53:44 +1000

To: Rachaele E May (DJPR)|iuiiakiiiiaa DHHS)

Cc: DHHSOpSoteriaEOC;|isiadiadis( DHHS); DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR);Melody
A Bush (DHHS)

Subject: RE: Query: PPE Advice for Hotel-Based Security Staff and AOs

Hi Rachaele

We have asked for a quick review based on the current situation at Rydges and will get back’o you in
tomorrow

Regards
Merrin

Merrin Bamert

Commander, Operation Soteria, Covid - 19

Director, Emergency Management, Population Health and Health Protection
South Division

Department of Health and Human Services

Level 5 / 165-169 Thomas Street, Dandenong, 3175

Personal Information

-

From: Rachaele E May (DJPR) @agriculture.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 29 May 2020 6:14 PM

Personal Information Personal Information .
To: RN OH5) R d hhs.vic.gov.au>

Cc: DHHSOpSoteriaEOC <DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Merrin Bamert (DHHS)

7 Personal Infori
@dhhs.vic.gov.au>;-DHHS) dhhs.vic.gov.au>; DJPR COVID Accom-

Lead (DJPR) <DJPRcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au>
Subject: Query: PPE Advice for Hotel-Based Security Staff and AOs

Personal Infori
Hi

We have hadjsome enquiries about the attached advice —is it the most current version, based on the
recent infection audit that pam initiated?

Thanks
Rachaele

Rachaele May

Operations Soteria (COVID-19)

DJPR Hotel Quarantine Agency Commander
djprcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au

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
Personal Information T 5
(@agriculture.vic.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au

Personal Information [=] I Infi ti .
From: (RN (0'5) (R © <hhs.vic.cov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 12 May 2020 10:50 PM

To: Nigel Coppick @unifiedsecurity.com.au>

Cc: Rachaele E May (DJPR) {isetiaiiaid @agriculture.vic.gov.au>; Pam Williams (DHHS)
@dhhs.vic.gov.au>,' DHHSOpSoteriaEOC <DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au>;
Melody A Bush (DHHS) <@dhhs.vic.gov.au>;(DHHS)
@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; I 0 HS) dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Subject: PPE Advice for Hotel-Based Security Staff and AOs

Hi Nigel,

As promised at our meeting this afternoon, please see attached the PPE:Advice for hotel security &
AOs which provides recommendations for PPE use according to typeof activity being undertaken.

As mentioned today please don’t hesitate to contact the DHHSOpSaoteriaEOC generic inbox if you
have any queries or would like to escalate any issues through’to'us.

The inbox is DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au

Thanks once again for your support today.

Kind regards

Personal Information

Operations Team Leader, Operation Soteria; Covid-19

Manager, Emergency Management-and Health Protection Branch
South Division (Gippsland and Southern Metropolitan Regions)
Department of Health & Human’Services

165-169 Thomas Street, DandenongVictoria 3175

Personal Information [@dhhs.vic.gov.au

www.dhhs.vic.gov.au’| ¥ @VicGovRecovery http://www.dhhs.vic.gov.au/

This email contains-confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this
information is‘prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that this communication is free of
virus.or' that'it has not been intercepted or interfered with. If you have received this email in error or
have any other concerns regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au










OPERATION SOTERIA
PPE Advice for Hotel Security Staff and AO’s in Contact

with Quarantined Individuals

Approved
Date: 08 Jun 20

Recommended PPE use According to Type of Activity

By: M. Adams DEP CMDR HLTH

Version 2.2

Setting

Activity

Security Staff

Client PPE required

Hotel Lobby

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every
client contact

Able to maintain physical
distance of at least 1.5 metres

No PPE
Hand hygiene

No'PPE

When accompanying clients
for fresh air/exercise breaks
from room to outside and able
to maintain 1.5 metres

1.5 metre physical distance is
not feasible

No PPE
Hand hygiene

Surgical mask
Hand hygiene

Client to wear surgical
face mask if tolerated
Hand hygiene

Advised not to touch
anything on the way
out/down

Hotel Lobby

When new guests are
arriving for the
commencement of their
quarantine

Perform hand hygiene
before and after every client
contact

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
infup

contact by security

Perform handhygiene
before-and after every
client-contact

Able to maintain physical
distance of at least 1.5 metres

Hand hygiene

Hotel quarantine floor No direct client contact e.qg. No PPE No PPE
walking-room-hallways or Hand hygiene
stationed:n room corridors

Not entering the client/s

room or having direct contact

with client/s.

Doorway indirect Any doorway visit: No PPE No PPE

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

Hands should be washed with soap and water if they are visibly soiled, otherwise alcohol-based hand

rub can be used continuously.
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Get Outlook for iOS

This email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be subject to
legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying or use of this information is
prohibited. The Department provides no guarantee that this communication is free of virus or that it has not
been intercepted or interfered with. If you have received this email in error or have any other concerns
regarding its transmission, please notify Postmaster@dhhs.vic.gov.au
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From: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)

Sent: Sun, 19 Apr 2020 12:38:27 +1000

To: DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au;Pam Williams (DHHS)
Cc: Allie H Jarvis (DJPR);SCC-Vic (State Controller Health)
Subject: DHHS Safety Officer

Hi Pam,

As per my earlier message, can you please provide me with a contact name for your DHHS Safety
Officer for Operations Soteria?

We have a number of incidents in hotels that require resolution and escalation, as well'as'some
shortages of PPE for our hotel-based staff.

Is there a joint risk assessment or Safety Plan (one for guests, one for staff) we could contribute to?

Thanks,
Rachaele

Rachaele May

A / Executive Director Emergency Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

g Personal Information. WY R Personal Information
Personal Information > s
@agriculture.vic.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
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From: Rachaele E May (DJPR)

Sent: Thu, 14 May 2020 20:11:24 +1000

To: DHHSOpSoteriaEOC;Merrin C Bamert (DHHS)
Subject: Supply of PPE to DJPR, security, Dnata staff
Hi Merrin,

| understand that when the hotel quarantine operation first started in March, PPE was difficult to
acquire. As such, it was agreed that DHHS would provide PPE for all staff associated with the Hotel
Quarantine project — including DJPR, Dnata and Security staff. Due to the shortages, security
companies ended up supplying their staff with PPE when DHHS supplies were low.

| believe the issue of PPE usage and distribution is a point of confusion and tension at the hotels,
especially as security staff take PPE for guests when escorting them for exercise'and fresh air breaks.
Reports have been relayed to me of less than cordial interactions between DHHS staff and security
staff regarding PPE usage.

Can you please confirm that your DHHS Team Leaders, nurses and AOs are aware that the PPE
provided by DHHS is for all Operations Soteria staff — this includes security, DJPR and Dnata staff.

Regards
Rachaele

Rachaele May

Operations Soteria (COVID-19)

DJPR Hotel Quarantine Agency Commander
djprcovidaccom-lead@ecodev.vic.gov.au

A / Executive Director Emergency. Coordination and Resilience
Department of Jobs, Precincts’and Regions
402 Mair Street Ballarat, Victoria Australia 3350

Personal Information
Personal Information 3 )
[a agnculture.vrc.gov.au

djpr.vic.gov.au
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Personal Information

Sent: Sat, 16 May 2020 17:16:10 +1000

To: DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR);DJPR COVID Accom-Support
(DJPR);Rachaele E May (DJPR)

Subject: FW: DHHS PPE Stocks - who has access

Importance: High

From:DHHS) e - dhhs.vic.gov.au>
Sent: Saturday, May 16, 2020 9:42 AM

To: [ (DJPR) @ clobal.vic.gov.au>

Subject: FW: DHHS PPE Stocks - who has access
Importance: High

H | Personal Infg

Here are the emails that were distributed earlier this morning.

Thanks

Personal Information

COVID-19 Logistics Support (located at Crown Promenade)
Department of Health and Human Services

50 Lonsdale Street, Melbourne, Victoria 3000
Personal Information dhhs.vic.gov.au

OR| A Health

State and Hurman
Government Services

The information in this e-mail is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely for the addressee. If you have received this
communication in error, please replytothe original sender with the subject heading "Received in error”, then delete the e-mail and destroy
any copies of it.

From: DHHSOpSoteriaEOC <DHHSOpSoteriaEOC@dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Sent: Saturday; 16 May 2020 8:43 AM

To: Crownmetropol <Crownmetropol@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Crownpromenade
<Crownpremenade@dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Subject: FW>DHHS PPE Stocks - who has access

Importance: High

Dear Crown Metropol & Promenade Hotel Team Leaders,

In regards to the email below, the situation is very different for your two
Hotels.



DJP.103.003.8082

We have an ongoing agreement to supply PPE to the Security Guards at these
two Hotels that is very much confirmed.

In most instances, | think their requests are coming to us directly, but there
may be times they may ask the Team Leader for something if they are running
low, especially afterhours.

Please help them out providing it is not going to leave you short where you
can.

If you have any questions, please let me know.
Can you leave this email somewhere, as it seems Team Leaders‘are not
consistent in all Hotels, so we need to make sure they understand that there is

a difference for the Metropol and Promenade?

Greatly appreciate your help!

Have a great day, and stay safe and healthy!

Regards

Personal Information

SEOC Logistics

Personal Information

From:\DHHSOpSoteriaEOC

Sent: Saturday, 16 May 2020 8:37 AM

To: Parkroyal <Parkroyal@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Holiday Inn Airport (DHHS)
<HolidaylnnAirport@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; HolidaylnnMelbourne
<HolidaylnnMelbourne@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; StamfordPlaza (DHHS)
<StamfordPlaza@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Rydges Swanston (DHHS) <RydgesSwanston@dhhs.vic.gov.au>;
Melbourne Marriott (DHHS) <melbournemarriott@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Four Points (DHHS)
<fourpoints@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Travelodge Southbank (DHHS)
<Travelodgesouthbank@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Panpacific <Panpacific@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Crowneplaza
<crowneplaza@dhhs.vic.gov.au>; Mercure (DHHS) <Mercure@dhhs.vic.gov.au>

Subject: DHHS PPE Stocks - who has access
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Greetings All,

Please be advised that there has been some confusion lately in regards to who
is entitled to request access to stocks of the PPE being provided to the Hotels
from DHHS.

As of today, you should provide PPE to those that request it who are working
at your Hotel. This includes Security Staff for now.

A review is happening and a final outcome has yet to be determined, and it is
hoped that a further update will be provided early next week.

We want you at this stage to maintain strong relationships/networks within
your Hotels with those working there.

Hopefully this clears up any confusion for now, and as soon a final decision is
determined, we will share with Hotels ASAP:

Have a great day, and stay safe and healthy!

Regards

Personal Information

SEOC Logistics

Personal Information

This‘email contains confidential information intended only for the person named above and may be
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

Sent: Mon, 18 May 2020 13:29:07 +1000

To: Rachaele E May (DJPR);DJPR COVID Accom-Lead (DJPR)
Cc: Merrin C Bamert (DHHS); iitiukiiasl (D HHS)
Subject: Provision of PPE in hotels

Hello Rachaele

You raised the issue or responsibility for the provision of PPE with me yesterday. Decisions were
made regarding this before either of us were involved but | have spoken to some people who were
involved from the beginning.

Our understanding is the opposite of what you described to me. The initial intent was for individual
departments to ensure their supporting agencies (including contractors) were provided-with suitable
PPE. Agencies outside DHHS were advised to approach CAOG to source supplies but,-in‘the interim,
DHHS supported them and provided PPE due to the time critical commencement of the hotel
programme.

It would be helpful if you could go back to the contractual arrangements.with your security
contractors to identify if there is any specific information included regarding their responsibility to
provide PPE for their staff. | would appreciate a copy for my records’alsoso we don’t have to re-
negotiate this again and to check my understanding is correct.

It is likely that the supply of PPE by DHHS has inadvertently continued despite the original
agreements. | do note that Crown hotels are an exception.“In lieu of daily incurred costs for hire of a
room (approx. $4k day) the department agreed to supply the Crown complex hotels with PPE for
security & hotel staff. This is not the case for any other of the hotels.

Given the confusion, | propose that DHHS communicates to all Departments, and through them, to
all contractors that as of an agreed date (whichywe can discuss) we will no longer provide PPE and all
departments will be responsible for supplying appropriate PPE for their allocated workforce,
including contractors. Please advise yourwiews on-the appropriate timing.

For your information, | am currently re-engaging an infection control consultancy to audit the
policies, procedures and implementation of.infection control in quarantine hotels, including use of
PPE. This occurred originally but as the program has grown, and the understanding of use of PPE has
been clarified, it is timely to repeat this work and be assured on appropriate policies and usage. | am
keen to ensure that the supporting agencies are aware of and adhere to the PPE policy as per
current recommendations from'the office of the Chief Health Officer.

Pam Williams
COVID19Accommodation Commander
Department,of Health and Human Services

Personal Information @ dhhs.vic.gov.au

www.dhhs.vic.gov.au

Soferia (Ancient Greek : Zwrnpia) was the goddess or spirit (daimon) of safety and salvation,
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
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